
 
 
 
 
South Haven City Hall is barrier free and the City of South Haven will provide the necessary 
reasonable auxiliary aids and services for persons with disabilities, such as signers for the 
hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting to 
individuals with disabilities at the meeting upon seven days’ notice to the South Haven City 
Clerk.    

Local Development Finance Authority 
 

 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
 
Monday, October 10, 2016 
4:00 p.m., Council Chambers 
South Haven City Hall 
                                City of South Haven       

 
 

 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Roll Call 
 
3. Approval of Agenda 
 
4.   Approval of Minutes – September 19, 2016 
 
5.   Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 
6.   Authority will be asked to approve Resolution 2016-04 to sell 220 Aylworth  
 
8.   General Comments     
 
9.   Adjourn 

 
 
 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
 
Kate Hosier 
Secretary, Local Development Finance Authority 
 

Page 1 of 8



 
 
 

Local Development Finance Authority 
 

 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
 
Monday, September 19, 2016 
4:00 p.m., Council Chambers 
South Haven City Hall 
                                City of South Haven       

 
 

 
1. Call to Order by Valentine at 4:00 p.m. 
 
2. Roll Call 
 

Present:  Laura Bos, Tom Erdmann, Tom Fleming, Robert Herrera, Andy Klavins, Stephanie 
Timmer, Chris Valentine 
 
Absent:  Art Bolt, Barbara Craig, Eugen Gawreliuk, Mike Henry 

 
Also present: Brian Dissette, City Manager; Jack McCloughan, Economic Development 
Director 

 
3. Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion by Klavins, second by Timmer to approve the September 19, 2016 Regular Meeting 
agenda as presented. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
4.   Approval of Minutes – August 8, 2016 
 

Motion by Klavins, second by Erdmann to approve the September 19, 2016 Regular 
Meeting minutes as written. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
5.   Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 
      None at this time. 
 
6.   Financial Report 
 
      Hosier reviewed the Financial Report. 
 
      Discussion ensued regarding cash flow.  
 

Page 2 of 8



September 19, 2016 
LDFA 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
DRAFT 

 

2 
 

      Motion by Erdmann, second by Klavins to accept the Financial Report as presented. 
 
       All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
7.   Contribution to Capital Projects 
 

Brian Dissette, City Manager. Spoke about LDFA making cash contributions on an annual 
basis to ongoing capital projects. The importance to the LDFA is very simple. The Indian 
Grove Pump Station and the main pump station, to be built, are going to be or are used by 
all the businesses in LDFAs 1, 2 and 3.  
 
Dissette explained that the benefits will be real and significant should the LDFA make an 
annual cash contribution of $50,000 per year. On a monthly basis fewer dollars would have 
to be spent by businesses. Dissette explained how that would affect retention and how 
similar benefits occur for residents (city, part-time and full-time; outside the city) all through 
water and sewer with savings per household, this is very real. 
 
Dissette noted that while he is asking the LDFA to lend support to capital projects, if you 
support this today we will be moving on to the DDA for a similar request. 
 
Dissette and Hosier have been talking with Mr. Bolt who wants the city to retain what we 
have. In talks with Albemarle, hundreds of local jobs and thousands of utility payments will 
be retained. We will still have the ability to grow the LDFA through buying up currently 
private land or by creation of an LDFA #4. Dissette noted, “We are out of land, LDFAs 1, 2 
and 3 are full. We need to ensure that we continue to see investment and development of 
private jobs.”  
 
Dissette asked, “Can you afford $50,000, $75,000 or $100,000? Yes. And I’m hoping the 
DDA will match what this board does.” 
 
Klavins asked if the LDFA does $100,000, will the DDA do $100,000 to which Dissette 
responded, “Yes, that is where I will start. Albemarle has made a decision to stay here, and 
I’m sure our utilities were actively examined during that decision making process. We have 
provided them with highly reliable water and highly reliable electric. Without a doubt utility 
costs are being factored in when these decisions are made.” 
 
Valentine asked how Dissette proposes to structure this; what comes out of each LDFA? 
Dissette pointed to the break-out in the packet. Discussion ensued regarding where the 
funds will be taken from, with Dissette saying $75,000 will be taken out of LDFA 1 and 
$25,000 out of LDFA 3. It was noted that LDFA 2 does not have much to offer. LDFA 3 is 
receiving the benefit of the main pump station; the bulk of the work is impacting LDFA 1.  
 
Valentine asked if this is in addition to whatever LDFA would be doing. Dissette said the 
special assessments were brought to all of the businesses in LDFA 1. If this were to happen 
we would zero out the special assessments for all businesses in LDFA 1.  
 
Erdmann questioned how we could make a $100,000 contribution yearly. Dissette spoke 
about annual revenues, and overhead costs we are billing to the LDFAs. Valentine 
commented about the assumption of growth. 
 

Page 3 of 8



September 19, 2016 
LDFA 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
DRAFT 

 

3 
 

Dissette noted there is no assumption of growth, however we do have positive cash flow 
and the ability to meet the 25-year cash contribution with the assumption you don’t have 
businesses closing.  
 
Discussion ensued regarding increases in taxable value. Dissette said all businesses in all 
LDFAs have a cash value and the ability to increase in value. Since approximately 1990 this 
city has seen overall value increasing. Some businesses have closed so there is declining 
value there.  
 
Valentine and Dissette discussed businesses staying at the same value as they are now 
with Dissette noting that some of the businesses have very low taxable value because they 
are being used as storage.  
 
Valentine is in agreement with the idea while a little fuzzy about how it is structured.  
 
Dissette: “You are looking at LDFAs and, what is more important, creating a new LDFA or 
assisting with utility costs for the existing businesses.” Klavins said, “Take care of what you 
have and with a match from DDA we will be getting double the dollar value.” Dissette said 
anything we can do to try to control the increase in water/sewer costs will be a benefit to the 
overall community. 
 
Motion by Klavins, to commit the $100,000 annually for proposed sewer and water 
improvements in the LDFAs. Second by Erdmann.  
 
Valentine asked if there was discussion of the motion. Hearing none she called the vote. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the individual LDFA resolutions being approved. It was 
decided to make a motion for each resolution. 
 
Motion by Klavins to approve Resolution #2016-01, a resolution recommending a fourth 
amendment to the development plan and tax increment financing plan (LDFA #1) to the City 
Council of the City of South Haven. Second by Erdmann. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Erdmann to approve Resolution #2016-02, a resolution recommending a fourth 
amendment to the development plan and tax increment financing plan (LDFA #2) to the City 
Council of the City of South Haven. Second by Klavins. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Klavins to approve Resolution #2016-03, a resolution recommending a second 
amendment to the development plan and tax increment financing plan (LDFA #3) to the City 
Council of the City of South Haven. Second by Timmer.  
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
By consensus the first motion above was modified and replaced with the following language: 

Page 4 of 8



September 19, 2016 
LDFA 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
DRAFT 

 

4 
 

 
Motion by Klavins to commit the $100,000 annually for the life of the borrowing - $75,000 
from LDFA #1 and $25,000 from LDFA # 3. Second by Erdmann. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
8.   General Comments     
 
      Jack McCloughan updated the board on economic development.   
 
9.   Adjourn 
 
      Motion by Klavins, second by Erdmann to adjourn at 4:30 p.m. 
 
      All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
Marsha Ransom 
Recording Secretary 
 

Page 5 of 8



LDFA Agenda 
Secretary’s Report 
October 10, 2016 

 

Local Finance Development Authority Secretary’s Report 

 
Agenda Item 6 

Closing Transactions for 220 Aylworth Ave “Bohn Building” 

 
 
 

Background Information: 
On May 16, 2016, this body, the Local Finance Development Authority, authorized the signing of 
a buy-sell agreement for the 220 Aylworth Avenue property, commonly known as the “Bohn 
Building.”  The purchasers, Lukela Group, LLC, have been following through their due diligence 
items and closing for the property is scheduled for the week of October 10th. 
 
As part of the closing, the title company was unable to accept the minutes authorizing the buy-
sell agreement because the motion or the minutes did not designate which board member 
would be allowed to sign on behalf of this municipal corporate body.  The attached draft 
resolution authorizes the chairperson, Art Bolt, and the vice-chairperson, Christine Valentine, to 
sign on behalf of the LDFA, in the event Mr. Bolt is unavailable.  The resolution also designates 
the secretary, Kate Hosier, to sign as staff representative. 
 
This signatory power is only for the closing transactions for the sale of 220 Aylworth Avenue. 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends the approval of Resolution 2016-04, a resolution authorizing signatories to 
close on 220 Aylworth, the “Bohn Building.” 
  
Support Material: 
Draft Resolution 2016-04 

Page 6 of 8



1 

CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN 
LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY 

VAN BUREN AND ALLEGAN COUNTIES, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - 04 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SIGNATORIES PERTAININT TO THE SALE 
OF 220 AYLWORTH “BOHN BUILDING” 

Minutes of a regular meeting of the Local Development Finance Authority of the 
City of South Haven, Van Buren and Allegan Counties, Michigan, held in the City Hall, 
539 Phoenix Street, South Haven, Michigan, on October 10, 2016, at 4:00 p.m. local 
time. 

PRESENT: ___________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT: ___________________________________________________________ 

The following resolution was offered by Member _________ and supported by 

Member ________: 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Act 281, Public Acts of Michigan, 1986, as amended (the “Act”), 
the City of South Haven did, on June 19, 1989, by Resolution No. 89-33, create and establish 
the City of South Haven Local Development Finance Authority (the “LDFA”); and 

WHEREAS, on May 16, 2016, the LDFA approved a buy/sell agreement for 220 
Aylworth, commonly known as the “Bohn Building” with the Lukela Group, LLC, a Michigan 
limited liability company; and 

WHEREAS, for the purposes of completing the transactions, the LDFA must designate 
signatories to complete closing transactions. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that: 

1. The LDFA designates the chairperson, Art Bolt, with the authority to sign 
as the representative of the LDFA for transactions related to the sale of 220 Aylworth 
South Haven, MI 49090. 

2. The LDFA designates the vice-chairperson, Christine Valentine, with the 
authority to sign as the representative of the LDFA for transactions related to the sale of 
220 Aylworth South Haven, MI 49090 in the event that the chair is unavailable. 

3. The LDFA designates the secretary, Kate Hosier, with the authority to sign 
as the staff representative of the LDFA for any transactions related to the sale of 220 
Aylworth South Haven, MI 49090. 

 

Page 7 of 8



RECORD OF VOTE: 

YEAS: __________________________________________________________ 

NAYS: __________________________________________________________ 

ABSTAIN: __________________________________________________________ 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

       
Art Bolt, Chairperson 
City of South Haven Local Development 
Finance Authority 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Kate Hosier, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a 
resolution adopted by the Board of the City of South Haven Local Development Finance 
Authority at a meeting held on October 10, 2016, and that public notice of said meeting 
was given pursuant to and in compliance with Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, 
as amended, including, in the case of a special or rescheduled meeting, notice by 
publication or posting at least eighteen (18) hours prior to the time set for the meeting. 

  
Kate Hosier, Secretary 

 City of South Haven Local Development 
Date:  October 10, 2016 Finance Authority 

Page 8 of 8


	10-10-2016 LDFA Agenda
	09-19-2016 LDFA Minutes - draft
	#6. Authorization to Sell staff report
	Res. 2016-04 Authorization to Sell 220 Aylworth
	CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY
	1. The LDFA designates the chairperson, Art Bolt, with the authority to sign as the representative of the LDFA for transactions related to the sale of 220 Aylworth South Haven, MI 49090.
	2. The LDFA designates the vice-chairperson, Christine Valentine, with the authority to sign as the representative of the LDFA for transactions related to the sale of 220 Aylworth South Haven, MI 49090 in the event that the chair is unavailable.
	3. The LDFA designates the secretary, Kate Hosier, with the authority to sign as the staff representative of the LDFA for any transactions related to the sale of 220 Aylworth South Haven, MI 49090.
	RECORD OF VOTE:
	Art Bolt, Chairperson






